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3 June 2024

[bookmark: deartext][bookmark: Sal]Dear XXXXXXXXXX
Re: Final Draft Guidance – Fenfluramine for treating seizures associated with Lennox-Gastaut Syndrome in people 2 years and over (ID1651)
[bookmark: _Hlk167976451]Thank you for your letter of 24 May 2024 responding to my initial scrutiny views.  This is my final decision on initial scrutiny.
I assess each of your points in turn.
Ground 1(a): In making the assessment that preceded the recommendation, NICE has failed to act fairly
Appeal point 1(a).1: NICE’s refusal of UCB’s request for technical engagement before the first meeting of the Appraisal Committee was procedurally unfair and has prejudiced the conduct of the appraisal.
I confirm that this point will be referred to the Appeal Panel. 
Thank you for the further detail you have provided regarding how UCB considers that the conduct of the appraisal and/or the recommendation reached was negatively impacted, including that the absence of technical engagement meant:
1. There was insufficient time for UCB for adequate consideration of relevant comparators
2. UCB was asked to provide a comparison between fenfluramine and standard of care alone only two days before ACM2, which was insufficient;
3. There was insufficient consideration of the appropriate method to compare efficacy; 
4. UCB was asked to explore a range of options following the draft guidance in circumstances where there was inadequate time for consideration at ACM2.
Appeal point 1(a).2: In the circumstances of this appraisal, including the lack of technical engagement, the multiple unresolved issues and the change in approach between ACM1 and ACM2, a third meeting of the Appraisal Committee should have been scheduled prior to issue of Final Draft Guidance.
Having considered the additional arguments made in your letter of 24 May 2024, I agree that this is a valid appeal point. 
Appeal point 1(a).3: Standard of Care (SoC) alone does not reflect NHS clinical practice and is not an appropriate comparator for fenfluramine.
I explained in my letter of 1 February 2024 I am minded to refer this point under ground 2.  Having considered the additional arguments made in your letter of 24 May 2024 advocating that this also be referred under ground 1(a), I confirm:
· I will refer this point under ground 2 as a new point 2.4; 
· I will not refer this point under ground 1(a). I note your argument that the Manual at 2.2.12 states "The scope identifies all potentially relevant comparators that are established practice in the NHS" and that in your view use of standard of care alone as a comparator "conflicts with the procedural test" at 2.2.12. Even if I were to accept 2.2.12 sets out a procedural test, I am not persuaded that the committee applied the wrong test. Rather, it seems to me that your argument is that the committee's decision to use standard of care alone as a comparator was, in essence, the wrong answer to that test, in light of the evidence regarding established practice in the NHS. I remain of the view, therefore, that this point should be considered under ground 2 only.
Appeal point 1(a).4: NICE’s approach to the use of ITT LOCF data versus clinical trial state occupancy data in order to compare fenfluramine + SoC with CBD + CLB + SoC, is procedurally unfair and inconsistent with the approach followed in the appraisal of CBD for the same indication (TA615).
I confirm that this point will be referred to the Appeal Panel. 
Appeal point 1(a).5: The absence of any indication of the Committee’s preferred assumptions at the Draft Guidance stage and the lack of clear explanation of how the Committee had taken into account the status of LGS as a rare disease, substantially prejudiced UCB’s ability to offer a discount that would meet the Committee’s expectations of cost-effectiveness.
Having considered the additional arguments made in your letter of 24 May 2024, I remain of the view that this appeal point should not proceed to an oral hearing. 
I note your argument that the committee has a procedural obligation to provide reasons for its conclusions at both the draft guidance stage and in the FDG as a matter of good administration, effective consultation and high standards of rigorous decision making.  
I do not accept that procedural fairness requires the committee to state its preferred assumptions in the draft guidance in circumstances where – as here – the draft guidance explains the committee's position at that point in time and what further information it requires to reach a settled view (that will then be included in the FDG).
I note in particular paragraph 3.24 of the FDG, which references the rarity of the condition and explains the factors leading to the committee's conclusion that an acceptable ICER would be towards the lower end of the range NICE considers a cost-effective use of NHS resources. The version of paragraph 3.24 in the draft guidance clearly could not contain that explanation or the committee's conclusion as a conclusion had not yet been reached by the committee. Rather, the draft guidance explained the committee could not arrive at a preferred ICER because the high level of uncertainty in the modelling assumptions and set out the additional work the committee would like to see before reaching a view. In my view this reflects the process set out in the Manual.
Appeal point 1(a).6: The requirement for UCB to produce new analyses and for substantive disclosure of important material from the EAG immediately before ACM2 did not allow adequate time for consideration and was inconsistent with a fair procedure.
I confirm that this point will be referred to the Appeal Panel. 
[bookmark: _Hlk167976458]Ground 2: the recommendation is unreasonable in the light of the evidence submitted to NICE
Appeal point 2.1: The Committee’s preference for a naïve comparison between the trials instead of an indirect treatment comparison of ITT data was unreasonable.
I confirm that this point will be referred to the Appeal Panel.
Appeal point 2.2: The Committee’s conclusions in relation to the waning of the treatment effects associated with fenfluramine and cannabidiol are inconsistent with the available evidence and with the approach followed in previous appraisals.
I confirm that this point will be referred to the Appeal Panel. 
Appeal point 2.3: NICE’s conclusion that it should assume no treatment wastage between fenfluramine and cannabidiol is inconsistent with the available evidence and therefore unreasonable
Having considered the additional arguments made in your letter of 24 May 2024, I agree that this is a valid appeal point. 
[bookmark: _Hlk167976384]Conclusion
Therefore the valid appeal points are:
· 1(a).1 
· 1(a).2
· 1(a).4
· 1(a).6
· 2.1 
· 2.2 
· 2.3 
· 2.4 (original appeal point 1(a).3);

NICE shares the valid appeal points of each appellant with the other appellants to assist with preparation for the hearing.  
NICE will be in contact with you regarding the administration of the appeal, which will be held orally. 
Yours sincerely
XXXXXXXXXX

Dr Mark Chakravarty
Lead Non-Executive Director for Appeals & Vice Chairman
National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
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